
 
 

STATUTORY LICENSING 
COMMITTEE 

 
10.00 AM THURSDAY, 26TH MARCH, 2020 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 

member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 
725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 

found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Application to Review a Premises Licence - Re-
Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

3 - 72 

4. Any other business deemed Urgent by the Chair   

 
 

 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Chairperson and/or Vice Chairperson of the Planning, 
Regulatory and Licensing Committee together with 1 or 
2 Members (as the case may be) drawn on a rota basis 
from the Members of the Planning, Regulatory and 
Licensing Committee 

  
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 
 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
STATUTORY LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Cais ar gyfer Adolygu Trwydded Eiddo / 
Application to Review a Premises Licence – Re-
Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 
8LR 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 An application to review a Premises Licence was submitted by South Wales Police 

on 30th January 2020 in relation to the above named premises.  In accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Committee is required to determine the 
application, having regard to the details provided within the application; any 
supporting evidence; any representations submitted during the consultation period 
and any verbal evidence provided at the Hearing.   

 
1.2 In determining this application, Members must do so with a view to promoting the 

four licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community.  Members 
must give appropriate weight to: - 

 

1.2.1 Steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 
1.2.2 The representations presented by all parties; 
1.2.3 Section 182 Guidance issued by the Home Office dated April 2018; 
1.2.4 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

dated December 2018. 
 
 

Date Written 2nd March 2020 

Report Author Aneurin Hughes 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 26th March 2020 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 In determining the application, Councillors must have regard to the four licensing 

objectives on which the Licensing Act 2003 is based.  These are: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Ensuring public safety 

 Prevention of public nuisance, and 

 The protection of children from harm 
 

2.2 Councillors must have consideration to the representations and take such steps it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The steps are: 
 

(i) To take no action to promote the licensing objectives; 
(ii) To modify the conditions of the licence (which includes adding new 

conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for 
example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door 
supervisors at particular times; 

(iii) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for 
example, to exclude the performance of live music or the playing of 
recorded music; 

(iv) To remove the Designated Premises Supervisor, for example, because 
they consider that the problems are the result of poor management; 

(v) To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
(vi) To revoke the licence. 

 
2.3 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Licensing Authority should so far as 

possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the 
representations identify.  Any remedial action taken should be directed at these 
causes, as they are the reason for the Review. 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 On 30th January 2020, an application to review the Premises Licence for Re-

Evolution was submitted by South Wales Police on the grounds of failure to promote 
three of the four licensing objectives, specifically the Protection of Children from 
Harm; the Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Prevention of Crime and Disorder.  
A copy of the application is attached at Appendix A to this Report. 
 

3.2 In accordance with procedure South Wales Fire Service, the Local Health Board and 
the Council’s Public Health, Trading Standards, Planning, Children’s Safeguarding 
Unit, Home Office and Licensing Sections were consulted on the application.   

 
3.3 In accordance with procedure, Ward Members were notified of the Review 

Application.  
 

Page 4



3.4 An advertisement was placed at the Council Offices and notices were displayed at 
the premises and on the Council website in respect of the application.  

  
3.5 Re-Evolution Ltd have held the Premises Licence since the 17th December 2019.  

The opening night was Friday 20th December 2019. 
 

3.6 The Licensing Section received complaints on the 21st and 22nd December 2019 
from a resident near to the premises.  Redacted copies of these are attached at 
Appendix B to this Report. 
 

3.7 Officers from the Licensing Authority attended the premises on 23rd December 2019 
where it was agreed by the premises licence holder that he had allowed licensable 
activities to occur beyond the hours allowed by their licence and that there were 
breaches of the conditions attached to the premises licence. 
 

3.8 On the 23rd December 2019, a Section 19 Closure Notice issued under the Criminal 
Justice and Police Act 2001 was served on Mr William Morgan as the Director of Re-
Evolution Ltd, the Premises Licence Holder.  This notice was subsequently lifted on 
the 24th December 2019, following confirmation that the premises were compliant 
with the conditions attached to its licence.  Copies of these Notices are attached at 
Appendix C to this Report. 
 

3.9 A Final Warning Letter was issued to Re-Evolution Ltd on the 27th December 2019 
for operating beyond their licensed hours and for breaching conditions attached to 
their licence.  This Warning Letter clearly informs the licence holder that should any 
further complaints or breaches of legislation occur then the Licensing Authority would 
be more than justified in Reviewing the Premises Licence and/or taking formal action 
through the courts.  A copy of this letter is attached at Appendix D to this Report. 
 

3.10 The Licensing Team Leader and South Wales Police Licensing Officer attended the 
premises on the 21st January 2020 to view CCTV footage of the weekend of the 17th 
– 19th January 2020 following reports of underage sales at the premises.  Full details 
of this inspection can be found in the representations submitted by South Wales 
Police and the Licensing Authority (Appendices A and J). 
 

3.11 On 23rd January 2020, Mr Narinder Singh removed himself as the DPS of the 
premises following discussions with South Wales Police and the Licensing 
Department in respect of the underage issues identified at the premises and his 
liability. 
 

3.12 Miss Rebecca Dando was named as the DPS with immediate effect on the 23rd 
January 2020.  She was the Bar Manager of the premises and had been involved in 
the meeting of the 16th December 2019 with South Wales Police and the Licensing 
Team Leader. 
 

3.13 Further reports of underage consumption of alcohol at the premises were received 
on the 25th January 2020.  Subsequent viewing of the CCTV by South Wales Police 
and the Licensing Department did not identify any clearly underage persons but did 
highlight an unlicensed activity occurring at the premises. 
 

Page 5



3.14 The above issues contributed, but not wholly, to the submission by South Wales 
Police of the Review application. 
 

3.15 Following receipt of the application for Review, the licence holder Mr William Morgan, 
on behalf of Re-Evolution Ltd, submitted an email in response to one of the reasons 
for the Review being requested.  A copy of this email is attached at Appendix E to 
this Report.  Mr Morgan will be able to expand on this at the Hearing. 

 
 

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 Responsible Authorities 
 
4.1 South Wales Police – as the applicants for the Review South Wales Police will be 

able to expand on the details within the application at the Hearing.  The application is 
attached at Appendix A to this Report.  South Wales Police have requested the 
revocation of the Premises Licence. 

 
4.2 Environmental Health – the Licensing Authority received Representations on the 30th 

January 2020.  A copy of these are attached at Appendix F to this Report.  Attached 
at Appendices F-1, F-2 and F-3 are copies of Noise Diary Logs that have been 
received by Environmental Health. 
 

4.3 Trading Standards – the Licensing Authority received Representations on the 3rd 
February 2020 supporting South Wales Police’s application on the grounds of 
protection of children from harm in view of the underage sale of alcohol.  A copy of 
this correspondence is attached at Appendix G to this Report.   

 
4.4 Area Child Protection – the Licensing Authority received Representations on the 27th 

February 2020.  A copy of these are attached at Appendix H to this Report.  The 
Area Child Protection Team has endorsed the request by South Wales Police for the 
licence to be revoked. 
 

4.5 Local Health Board – the Licensing Authority received Representations on the 17th 
February 2020.  A copy of these are attached at Appendix I to this Report.  The 
Local Health Board has endorsed the request by South Wales Police for the licence 
to be revoked. 
 

4.6 Licensing Authority – the Licensing Authority received Representations on the 27th 
February 2020.  A copy of these is attached at Appendix J to this Report.   
 

Members of the Public 
 

4.7 The Licensing Authority received a representation on the 26th February 2020 from a 
local resident.  A copy of this is attached at Appendix K to this Report. 
 

4.8 The Licensing Authority received a further representation on the 27th February 2020 
from another local resident.  A copy of this is attached at Appendix L to this Report.   
 
 

Page 6



 

4.9 The Licensing Authority received a representation on 27th February 2020 from 
Llamau Ltd, a housing project in Garth Newydd Court for vulnerable homeless and 
potentially homeless young people.  A copy of these representations is attached at 
Appendix M to this Report. 
 

4.10 The Licensing Authority received a representation on the 27th February 2020 from a 
Ward Member for Park Ward, the Ward that the premises are situated in.  A copy of 
this is attached at Appendix N to this Report. 
 

4.11 The Licensing Authority received a representation on the 10th February 2020 from 
South Wales Police Schools Liaison Officer.  A copy of this is attached at Appendix 
O to this Report.   

 
 
5.0 PREMISES HISTORY 
 
5.1 The current premises licence holder is Re-Evolution Ltd.  They have held the 

premises licence since it was transferred into their name on the 17th December 2019.   
 
5.2 A detailed history of the premises, the premises licence holders and the various 

designated premises supervisors is attached at Appendix P to this Report.  This 
covers the premises through its various guises of Punjabi Junction / Tiffins / Re-
Evolution, from the initial grant of a Premises Licence to Mr Kamaljit Singh on the 
16th June 2018. 

 
5.3 Members attention is drawn to the fact that the premises has had three different 

Premises Licence Holders and four different Designated Premises Supervisors.  A 
fifth designated premises supervisor should be in place shortly. 

 
5.4 Members attention is further drawn to the fact that since 17th December 2019 the 

premises has had three different designated premises supervisors.  The rate of 
turnover of DPS’ does not contribute to the promotion of any of the Licensing 
Objectives and can be perceived to indicate poor management as a direct reflection 
of poor company practice or policy at the premises. 

 
 

6.0 POLICY 
 
6.1 Members are reminded that in exercising its powers in determining this Review 

application they must have regard to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy dated December 2018. 
 

6.2 In accordance with Section 1.1 of the above Policy, the Licensing Authority will carry 
out its functions under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to promoting the four 
licensing objectives as set out in the Act, each of which is of equal importance. 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
6.3 In particular, the following sections may be useful: - 

 

6.3.1 Section 4.2 states: - “Licensing is about the regulation of licensed 
premises … Terms and conditions attached to the various permissions 
granted under the Act will be focused on matters within the control of 
the individual licensees and other relevant permissions.” 
 

6.3.2 Section 4.3 states: - “As a matter of policy, the Licensing Authority 
expects every holder of a licence, certificate or permission to be 
responsible for minimising the impact of their activities and any anti-
social behaviour demonstrated by their patrons within the immediate 
vicinity of their premises.” 

 

6.3.3 Section 4.4 states: - “The Licensing Authority will use its powers to 
promote best practice in relation to the operation of licensed premises 
and to deter poor practice.” 
 

6.3.4 Section 19.4 states: - “In particular, the Licensing Authority will expect 
applicants to address the following matters in their operating 
schedules: 
 The capability of the person in charge to ensure effective and 

responsible management of the premises; 

 Where premises are subject to age restrictions, the procedures which 
are in place to conduct age verification checks.” 

 
6.3.5 Section 21.2 states: - “The Licensing Authority intends to interpret 

‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense and takes it to include such issues 
as noise, light, odour, litter and disturbance from customers in the 
immediate vicinity of the licensed premises, where these matters 
impact on those living or working in an area.” 
 

6.3.6 Section 21.3 states: - “...the Licensing Authority will consider the 
adequacy of measures which are proposed to deal with the potential 
for nuisance and/or anti-social behaviour having regard to all the 
circumstances of the application.  In particular, the Licensing Authority 
will expect applicants to address the following matters in their operating 
schedules:  

 The location of premises and proximity to residential and other 
noise sensitive premises; 

 Measures taken to prevent noise and vibration escaping from the 
premises from such sources as music, noise from ventilation 
equipment and human voices; 

 The use of beer gardens, patios and other open-air areas; 

 Any history of previous nuisance complaints which have been proved 
against the premises; 

 External smoking areas must be selected so as to minimize any 
disturbance to the neighbourhood, should be covered effectually by 
CCTV or be supervised. Access to the smoking area must be 
controlled such that noise from any entertainment does not become 
intrusive to neighbouring premises.” 

Page 8



 

6.3.7 Section 22.2 sates: - “While the Act does not generally prohibit children 
from accessing licensed premises it does prohibit children under the 
age of 16, unless accompanied by an adult, from accessing licensed 
premises which are primarily or exclusively for the supply and 
consumption of alcohol on the premises.” 

 

6.3.8 Section 23.3 states: - “The Licensing Authority will take a particularly 
serious view of any application for the review of any Premises Licence 
where any of the following have been involved: 
 The underage purchase and consumption of alcohol” 

 

6.3.9 Section 23.4 states: - “Or, where management practices are failing to 
address adverse impact to the community in respect of the following 
criteria: 
 Where the Police have been called frequently to attend to incidents of 

disorder; 

 Where there have been prolonged and/or repeated instances of public 
nuisance; 

 Where serious risks to children have been identified; 

 Continuous non-compliance with conditions of licence. 

 
6.3.10 Section 23.7 states: - “…the Licensing Authority and partners will adopt 

a stepped approach, where early warning of concerns will be given to 
licensees to allow opportunity to address problems. A failure to take 
heed of a warning and effect an improvement is likely to result in a 
review. In cases when the crime prevention objective is being 
undermined it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the 
first instance - will be seriously considered.” 

 
6.3.11 Section 25.2 states: - “The Licensing Authority will take a graduated 

response where offences against licensing legislation are found or 
where licence conditions have been contravened.  An isolated 
administrative offence – such as failing to maintain certain records – 
may be dealt with purely by way of a written warning. More serious 
offences, those which have been continually committed over a period 
of time or which jeopardise the licensing objectives may result in a 
referral for prosecution.” 

 
 

7.0 LEGISLATION 
 

7.1 The relevant legislation is the Licensing Act 2003 and the relevant sections are: - 
 

7.1.1 Section 4(1) - A licensing authority must carry out its functions under 
this Act (“licensing functions”) with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives. 
 

Page 9



7.1.2 Section 51(1) - Where a premises licence has effect, a responsible 
authority or any other person may apply to the relevant licensing 
authority for a review of the licence. 

 

7.1.3 Section 52(2) - Before determining the application, the authority must 
hold a hearing to consider it and any relevant representations. 

 

7.1.4 Section 52(4) - The steps are— 
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence; 
(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the 

licence; 
(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor; 
(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three 

months; 
(e) to revoke the licence; 

 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of 
them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added.  
 

7.1.5 Section 52(11) - A determination under this section does not have 
effect— 

(a) until the end of the period given for appealing against the 
decision, or 

(b) if the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is 
disposed of. 

 
7.2 The Secretary of State has issued Guidance to Licensing Authorities under Section 

182 of the Licensing Act 2003, to which Licensing Authorities must have regard to in 
discharging their functions.  The latest version of this Guidance is dated April 2018. 
 

7.3 Chapter 11 of this Guidance deals with the Review process.  Of particular interest to 
Members should be paragraph 11.30, which states: - 
 

“The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate 
responsibly and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be 
under the age of 18 at the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a 
Challenge 21 or 25 scheme). Where these systems are in place, licensing 
authorities may wish to take a proportionate approach in cases where there 
have been two sales of alcohol within very quick succession of one another 
(e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and conformed with a 
store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales of 
alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those 
managing the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not 
exercised appropriate due diligence, responsible authorities should consider 
taking steps to ensure that a review of the licence is the norm in these 
circumstances. This is particularly the case where there has been a 
prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been 
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the 
licensing authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this 
appropriate.” 

Page 10



 
 
7.4 Section 19 of the Criminal Justice & Police Act 2001 deals with the closure notice 

and covers the sale of alcohol otherwise than in accordance with an authorisation.  
This includes breaching licence conditions, and lasts until the breach has been 
rectified. 

 
7.5 The effect of a closure notice issued under Section 19 is that licensable activities 

must cease until the defect has been rectified. 

 
 

8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 None. 
 
 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
9.1 It has been identified that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is not required for 
 the purpose of this report.  Please contact the author for details of this decision. 
 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CLLR GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

NO 

.  

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

hughea1
Text Box
APPENDIX A



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25

hughea1_1
Text Box
APPENDIX B

hughea1_2
Text Box

hughea1_3
Text Box



Page 26

hughea1_4
Text Box

hughea1_5
Text Box

hughea1_6
Text Box



Page 27

hughea1_7
Text Box
APPENDIX C



Page 28



Merthyr Tudful   Merthyr Tydfil      
… lle I fod yn falch ohono   … a place to be proud of   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Annwyl / Dear Mr Morgan, 

 
Re:  The Licensing Act 2003 – Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil 
 
The Licensing Department of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council have received complaints from a 
member of the public about the use of the above premises outside the hours that are stated on the 
Premises Licence on your opening night of Friday 20th December and over the weekend of 21st to 
22nd December 2019. 
 
The complaint stated that the hours that Recorded Music was played on the Friday and Saturday 
nights was beyond the hours stipulated on your Premises Licence.  Your Licence, as previously 
discussed with you on several occasions prior to your opening, allows recorded music to be played as 
below: - 
 
 Sunday to Thursday  1100hrs to 2300hrs 
 Friday and Saturday  1100hrs to 2330hrs 
 
Allowing recorded music to be played beyond these hours is a breach of the licensing legislation and 
constitutes an unauthorised licensed activity. 
 
I would advise that in accordance with Section 136(1) of the Licensing Act 2003: - 
 

(1) A person commits an offence if- 
(a) He carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises 

otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation, or 
(b) He knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on. 

 
A person found guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to a term of 
imprisonment not exceeding six months or to an unlimited fine or both. 
 
 
 

Canolfan Ddinesig, Stryd y Castell, 
Merthyr Tudful, CF47 8AN 

 Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN 

 
Ffôn /Tel: (01685) 725000 

Ffacs /Fax: (01685) 374397 
www.merthyr.gov.uk 

Croesawn alwadau yn y Gymraeg 
We welcome calls in Welsh 

Ellis Cooper BSc. (Hons) 
Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr / Deputy Chief Executive 

                                                                           Dyddiad/Date:  27th December 2019  
    
Ein Cyf./Our ref.: PL0338 Gofynnwch am /Please ask for:  Aneurin Hughes  

Eich Cyf./Your ref.:  Llinell Uniongyrchol /Direct Line:  01685 725000  
 e-bost /e-mail:  Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk  

 

First Class 
Re-Evolution Ltd 
Mr William Morgan 
Lair y Ddraig 
Upper High Street 
Cefn Coed y Cymmer 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2HW 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 29

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/
hughea1_8
Text Box
APPENDIX D



 
Merthyr Tudful   Merthyr Tydfil      
… lle I fod yn falch ohono   … a place to be proud of   
 

On Monday 23rd December 2019, officers from Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s Licensing 
Authority attended the premises and met with you and your DJ for the weekend, to discuss the 
complaint and to view your CCTV footage from the weekend for clarification of the time that the music 
ceased to be played.  It was also requested that you download the required footage on a portable 
device and provide it for the Licensing Authority in accordance with the conditions attached to your 
Premises Licence. 
 
Whilst at the premises both you and the DJ confirmed that the music had gone on past the terminal 
hour of 23:30hrs in direct contravention of your authorised hours.  Furthermore, you were unable to 
provide the footage from your CCTV either to be viewed at the premises or to be downloaded in 
respect of these incidents. 
 
This is contrary to Condition 3 from Annex 3 of your Premises Licence: - 

 
3. Images shall be supplied to Police or other enforcement officers at the time the request is made 
with DVD/USB (or other easily downloadable formats) recordings from the CCTV system on the 
premises at all times when trading, and at no cost to the authorities. 

 
Following receipt of the initial complaint and our ensuing preliminary investigations, it became 
apparent the DJ’s son was in attendance at the premises until the playing of recorded music had 
ceased, and beyond. 
 
This is contrary to Condition 3 from Annex 3 of your Premises Licence: - 

 
17. No person under the age of 16 are to be in the premises after 23.00hrs. 

 
These breaches of conditions are also in contravention of Section 136(1) of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
It was at this meeting on the 23rd December 2019 that the decision to issue a Closure Notice under 
Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001was taken due to the continuing failure to 
comply with Condition 3 from Annex 3 of your Premises Licence, as detailed above.  This Notice was 
subsequently cancelled on the 24th December 2019 following the installing of a new hard drive for the 
CCTV system and eventual compliance with the relevant condition. 
 
It is extremely concerning that despite all the help and advice given to you in relation to the licensed 
hours and conditions attached to the premises licence by both the Licensing Team Leader and South 
Wales Police Licensing Officer, on your very first weekend of being open this was totally disregarded. 
 
You were also advised of the sensitive nature of these premises following your advert of Faceboook 
of it being a “nightclub open til late”, and the subsequent number of queries raised by local residents.  
You even went and spoke to several of these residents to try to alleviate their concerns. 
 
To receive the above complaints; your confirmation that recorded music had gone on past the 
terminal hour of 23:30hrs; two further breaches of conditions attached to your Premises Licence 
identified in under 48 hours of the premises being open and a Section 19 Closure Notice being issued 
less than 72 hours after your premises started trading indicates a blatant disregard for your legal 
obligations and a large degree of incompetence in operating licensed premises. 
 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and South Wales Police use a stepped approach to 
enforcement and any other action that may be required in respect of non-compliant premises.  
However, since you became the Premises Licence Holder on the 17th December 2019, to have so 
many issues raised about a premises over its opening weekend is extremely concerning. 
 

Page 30



 
Merthyr Tudful   Merthyr Tydfil      
… lle I fod yn falch ohono   … a place to be proud of   
 

The type of complaints and the identified breaches of conditions is totally unacceptable after just your 
first weekend of trading.  It has been determined on this occasion to issue you with a FINAL 
WARNING in relation to the activities identified over your opening weekend.  Should any further 
complaints or breaches of legislation occur then the Licensing Authority would be more than justified 
in Reviewing your Premises Licence and/or taking formal action through the courts. 
 
I would further advise you that although the Licensing Authority has determined to issue you with a 
FINAL WARNING, any resident could request a Review of your licence at any time.  They do not 
need to take a stepped approach.  Should a Review be instigated, if justified, the Members of the 
Licensing Committee would be justified in removing licensable activities from your licence or revoking 
your Premises Licence. 
 
You are reminded that you must comply with all conditions attached to your premises licence when 
licensable activities are taking place.  Any future breaches of conditions may result in formal action 
being taken through the courts.  A person found guilty of an offence under Section 136 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 is liable on summary conviction to a term of imprisonment not exceeding six 
months or to an unlimited fine or both. 
 
Cofion / Regards, 

 
ANEURIN HUGHES 
SWYDDOG TRWYDDEDU/LICENSING OFFICER 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Croesawn ohebu yn Gymraeg a fydd gohebu yn y Gymraeg ddim yn arwain at oedi. Rhowch wybod inni 
beth yw’ch dewis iaith e.e Cymraeg neu’n ddwyieithog. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh and corresponding with us in Welsh will not lead to a delay. Let 
us know your language choice if Welsh or bilingual. 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: William Morgan <merthyr_bill@yahoo.com>
Sent: 05 February 2020 09:46
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: Re-evolution 

As the premises licence holder for RE-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil, I would like to make the licensing 
department and committee aware of the circumstances which led to a 15 year old boy being in my premises on the 
evening of Saturday 18th January 2020. 
  
I was working at Re-Evolution that evening when my friend`s 15 year old son came into the premises. ( I know the 
boy and his father through my car sales company that I also run). The boy had come into the premises as he knew 
that I own it. He told me that his mobile phone battery was flat, and asked if I could contact his father to come and 
pick him up, which I did. 
  
We were concerned about the boy`s drunken state, so we sat him in a chair near to the entrance door and gave him 
a glass of water. We kept an eye on him until his father, Andrew Jones came to pick him up. At no time did this boy 
have any alcohol whilst in RE- Evolution. 
  
I am aware that Andrew took his son to hospital due to concerns that he may have taken other substances other 
than alcohol. Andrew kept me updated by text regarding his son`s condition, which was confirmed as being purely 
down to drinking alcohol. Andrew`s son was kept in hospital overnight before being allowed home.  
  
At 2pm on Tuesday 4th February 2020, Police Licensing Officer Andy Jenkins attended at Re-Evolution where he met 
with Andrew Jones. Andrew told the officer what I have described above. I also showed the officer a photograph and 
text messages relating to this incident between Andrew and myself on the night in question. Those messages 
received and responded to between 21:40 and 22:02 on 18thJanuary. 
 
Many thanks  
William morgan  

Page 33

hughea1_9
Text Box
APPENDIX E



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Eldred, Garin
Sent: 30 January 2020 15:16
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: FW: Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Re-Evolution, Bethesda 

Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8LR [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]
Attachments: SWP Review Application 30.1.2020.pdf

Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Aneurin, 
 
I would support a review of the premises licence associated with Re-Evolution on the basis of the prevention of 
public nuisance.  
 
Since the premises has been trading as Re-Evolution from 20th December 2019, Environmental Health has received 
five noise complaints from separate addresses within the vicinity of the premises. 

- 08/01/2020 – Complaint regarding music noise from 7 Garth Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - Noise log sheets have 
been sent to the complainant and I am awaiting their return. 

- 09/01/2020 – Complaint regarding music noise from 6 Garth Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - Noise log sheets have 
been sent to the complainant and I am awaiting their return.   

- 09/01/2020 – Complaint regarding music noise from 9 Garth Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - Noise log sheets have 
been sent to the complainant and I am awaiting their return.   

- 25/01/2020 – Complaint  regarding music noise from an anonymous source :- Unable to contact the 
complainant for any further details. 

- 28/01/2020 – Complaint regarding music noise and ASB from patrons associated with the premises from 22 
Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - Noise log sheets have been sent to the complainant and I am awaiting 
their return.   

 
Due to the location of this premises I personally feel a poorly managed club with regards to music and patron noise 
will potentially result in a nuisance being caused to local residents.  
 
Kind regards  
 

From: Richards, Charlotte <Charlotte.Richards@merthyr.gov.uk>  
Sent: 30 January 2020 13:49 
To: Eldred, Garin <Garin.Eldred@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 
8LR [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 
 

From: Hughes, Aneurin  
Sent: 30 January 2020 13:19 
To: Andrew Jones <Andrew.Jones2@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Andy Jenkins <Andrew.Jenkins3@south-
wales.pnn.police.uk>; David Mccutcheon <David.Mccutcheon@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Diane Gibbons 
<diane.gibbons@wales.nhs.uk>; Eyre, Jon <Jon.Eyre@merthyr.gov.uk>; Fiona Colwill <Fiona.Colwill@south-
wales.pnn.police.uk>; Home Office Review <ie.alcoholreviews@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk>; Jackie Whittle 
(jackie.whittle@south-wales.pnn.police.uk) <jackie.whittle@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Janet Barlow 
<janet.barlow@wales.nhs.uk>; Joanne Sullivan (Public Health Wales) <Joanne.Sullivan3@wales.nhs.uk>; Lewis, Paul 
<Paul.Lewis@merthyr.gov.uk>; Mike Ruddall <Michael.Ruddall@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Planning 
<Planning@merthyr.gov.uk>; Richards, Charlotte <Charlotte.Richards@merthyr.gov.uk>; Rushton, Craig 
<Craig.Rushton@merthyr.gov.uk>; Samuel Belcher <sam.belcher@wales.nhs.uk>; Sian Herbert 

Page 35

hughea1_10
Text Box
APPENDIX F



2

<sian.herbert@wales.nhs.uk>; South Wales Fire <diogelwchtan@decymru-tan.gov.uk>; Gow, Susan 
<Susan.Gow@merthyr.gov.uk>; Tony Pitt (anthony.pitt2@south-wales.pnn.police.uk) <anthony.pitt2@south-
wales.pnn.police.uk> 
Cc: Baber, Joanne <Joanne.Baber@merthyr.gov.uk>; Lewis, Paul <Paul.Lewis@merthyr.gov.uk>; Jayne, Michelle 
<Michelle.Jayne@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8LR 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Good Afternoon All, 
 
Please find attached application for the Review of a premises licence submitted by South Wales 
Police in respect of the above named premises. 
 
Briefly, the grounds for Review are: - 
 
“Management and Staff are undermining the Licensing Objectives, specifically the Protection of 
Children from Harm; the Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder.  In addition, South Wales Police have no confidence in the management and control at 
the premises despite a high level of intervention, advice and assistance provided by both the Police 
and Licensing Department.” 
 
The last date for any comments to be received in respect of this application is Thursday 27th February 
2020.  The subsequent Committee Hearing must be held between the 16th and the 26th March 2020. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
 
Cofion/Regards 
 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Canolfan Ddinesig / Civic Centre 
Stryd y Castell / Castle Street 
Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
  
Ffôn / Tel: 01685 725000 
E-bost / E-mail: aneurin.hughes@merthyr.gov.uk 
 

Page 36



Page 37

hughea1_11
Text Box
APPENDIX F-1

hughea1_12
Text Box

hughea1_13
Text Box



Page 38



Page 39

hughea1_14
Text Box
APPENDIX F-2

hughea1_15
Text Box

hughea1_16
Text Box



Page 40



Page 41

hughea1_17
Text Box
APPENDIX F-3

hughea1_18
Text Box

hughea1_19
Text Box



Page 42



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Rushton, Craig
Sent: 03 February 2020 14:51
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: RE: Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Re-Evolution, Bethesda 

Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8LR [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Good Afternoon 
 
Trading Standards (TS) is one of the responsible authorities (RA) for the purposes of the Licensing Act. 
 
As a RA TS has been invited to make comments regarding the application for Review of a premise license for Re-
Evolution. 
 
TS has received not direct complaints regarding the sale of alcohol to underage customers. However, as a RA TS 
supports the application for review by SWP as the application refers to an number of instances where underage 
sales of alcohol have occurred. Such sales would breach the licensing objective – the protection of children from 
harm. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Craig Rushton 
Arweinydd Tîm Safonau Masnach/Trading Standards Team Leader 
Merthyr Tudful CBS/Merthyr Tydfil CBC 
 
Ffon/Tel   01685 725053 
Ffacs/Fax 01685 722146 
 
 

From: Hughes, Aneurin <Aneurin.Hughes@merthyr.gov.uk>  
Sent: 30 January 2020 13:19 
To: Andrew Jones <Andrew.Jones2@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Andy Jenkins <Andrew.Jenkins3@south-
wales.pnn.police.uk>; David Mccutcheon <David.Mccutcheon@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Diane Gibbons 
<diane.gibbons@wales.nhs.uk>; Eyre, Jon <Jon.Eyre@merthyr.gov.uk>; Fiona Colwill <Fiona.Colwill@south-
wales.pnn.police.uk>; Home Office Review <ie.alcoholreviews@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk>; Jackie Whittle 
(jackie.whittle@south-wales.pnn.police.uk) <jackie.whittle@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Janet Barlow 
<janet.barlow@wales.nhs.uk>; Joanne Sullivan (Public Health Wales) <Joanne.Sullivan3@wales.nhs.uk>; Lewis, Paul 
<Paul.Lewis@merthyr.gov.uk>; Mike Ruddall <Michael.Ruddall@south-wales.pnn.police.uk>; Planning 
<Planning@merthyr.gov.uk>; Richards, Charlotte <Charlotte.Richards@merthyr.gov.uk>; Rushton, Craig 
<Craig.Rushton@merthyr.gov.uk>; Samuel Belcher <sam.belcher@wales.nhs.uk>; Sian Herbert 
<sian.herbert@wales.nhs.uk>; South Wales Fire <diogelwchtan@decymru-tan.gov.uk>; Gow, Susan 
<Susan.Gow@merthyr.gov.uk>; Tony Pitt (anthony.pitt2@south-wales.pnn.police.uk) <anthony.pitt2@south-
wales.pnn.police.uk> 
Cc: Baber, Joanne <Joanne.Baber@merthyr.gov.uk>; Lewis, Paul <Paul.Lewis@merthyr.gov.uk>; Jayne, Michelle 
<Michelle.Jayne@merthyr.gov.uk> 
Subject: Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8LR 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
Classification: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Good Afternoon All, 
 
Please find attached application for the Review of a premises licence submitted by South Wales 
Police in respect of the above named premises. 

Page 43

hughea1_20
Text Box
APPENDIX G



2

 
Briefly, the grounds for Review are: - 
 
“Management and Staff are undermining the Licensing Objectives, specifically the Protection of 
Children from Harm; the Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder.  In addition, South Wales Police have no confidence in the management and control at 
the premises despite a high level of intervention, advice and assistance provided by both the Police 
and Licensing Department.” 
 
The last date for any comments to be received in respect of this application is Thursday 27th February 
2020.  The subsequent Committee Hearing must be held between the 16th and the 26th March 2020. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
 
Cofion/Regards 
 
Aneurin 
 
Aneurin Hughes 
Swyddog Trwyddedu / Licensing Officer 
 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Canolfan Ddinesig / Civic Centre 
Stryd y Castell / Castle Street 
Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 
  
Ffôn / Tel: 01685 725000 
E-bost / E-mail: aneurin.hughes@merthyr.gov.uk 
 

Page 44



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Jayne, Michelle
Sent: 27 February 2020 18:29
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: Re-evolution

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Aneurin, 
 
Children’s Services, Merthyr Tydfil CBC fully support the Review of the Premises Licence submitted by South 
Wales Police in respect of Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil.  The reason for these 
representations is that we believe the Licensing Objective of Protection of Children from Harm is being 
seriously undermined by the current proprietors. 
 
Over the weekend commencing 17th January 2020 police were contacted in relation to vulnerable young 
people under the age of 18 frequenting the establishment; the young people were believed to be residents of 
Garth Newydd Court which is a supported living arrangement for young people that have vulnerabilities and 
often have been previously Children Looked After and require support with aspects of their ability to manage 
their self-care skills and emotional wellbeing as they follow a transition into adulthood.  Many of the young 
people who have resided within Garth Newydd Court are susceptible to exploitation and have experienced 
adverse experiences within their childhoods which leave them particularly vulnerable and often with limited 
positive support networks.       
 
Following contact being made with the allocated social workers for some of the young people involved it 
became evident that one young person under the age of 18 had alleged to have worked at the premises for 
‘cash in hand’.  A photograph that was used by Re-evolution on New Year’s Eve was observed and there is at 
least one vulnerable young person under the age 18 contained within this.  
 
There had been discussions about one particular young person DJ’ing with an adult accompanying him 
however I am aware from the Children Looked After Team that he is separated from his family and in terms of 
reliable and safe adults within his life they would be limited.  In terms of some of the adults within his life they 
would not be considered as being best placed to support in decision making or as being an appropriate 
safeguard for him. 
 
Whilst it is acknowledged that the proprietors would not necessarily be aware of the particular vulnerabilities 
of the young people within the local community as a responsible proprietor I would expect that there should 
be an appropriate identification process to ensure that those under the age of 18 were not accessing the 
premises and placing themselves in situations where they could be placed at a greater level of vulnerability.   
 
Given that the premises is located next door to Garth Newydd Court, where there will continue to be young 
people with a range of difficulties or vulnerabilities residing I would be concerned if the recent difficulties 
were to continue.   
 
To conclude, Children’s Services of Merthyr Tydfil CBC fully endorse South Wales Police’s request for the 
above named premises to have its licence Revoked. 
 

Michelle Jayne 
Rheolwr Tim/Team Manager 
Tîm Cymorth I Deuluoedd/Child and Family Support Team  
Ffon /Phone: (01685) 724579 
Ebost/ Email: michelle.jayne@merthyr.gov.uk  
Rhynygrwyd /Web: www.merthyr.gov.uk   
Uned 5/Unit 5  
Ystad Ddiwydiannol Triongl/Triangle Industrial Estate  
Pentrebach  

Page 45

hughea1_21
Text Box
APPENDIX H



2

Merthyr Tudful/Merthyr Tydfil  
CF48 4TQ  
 

Page 46



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Cyfeiriad Dychwelyd / Return Address: 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board, , Dewi Sant Hospital, Albert Road, Pontypridd, CF37 1LB 

 

Cadeirydd/Chair: Professor Marcus Longley Prif Weithredydd (Dros Dro)/Chief Executive (Interim): Dr Sharon Hopkins 
 

Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board is the operational name of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Local Health Board 

 
 

Your Ref/Eich cyf:  

Our Ref/Ein cyf: KN /JS 

Date/Dyddiad: 17.02.2020 

Tel/ffôn: 01443 744864 

Fax/Ffacs:  

Email/ebost: Kelechi.nnoaham@wales.nhs.uk 

Dept/Adran: Public Health 

 
Mr. Aneurin Hughes, 
Licensing Officer, 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, 
Civic Centre, 
Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil. 
CF47 8AN 
 
Dear Mr. Hughes 
 
In accordance with the Health Board’s position as a responsible authority, I can confirm we have received the 
following review of a licencing application at:- 
 

Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8LR 
 
     
CTMUHB has concerns about this licence on the grounds of the potential adverse effect on the health of our 
population, particularly of children, and the risk of wider social harms within the community.   
 
CTMUHB area has the highest incidence in Wales of alcohol related admissions and mortality.  Alcohol misuse 
is a major contributing factor to the burden of ill health and inequalities in our area. 

The attached summary demonstrates the key concerns in respect to this application, together with an 

overview of the background information on which they are based.  

CTMUHB would also ask to withhold the right to comment further, should additional information be brought 
to their attention at a later date. 
  
Kind regards 
 
 
Joanne Sullivan 
 
Public Health Practitioner, Cwm Taf Morgannwg Public Health Team 
On behalf of Kelechi Nnoaham, Director of Public Health, Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47

mailto:Kelechi.nnoaham@wales.nhs.uk
hughea1_22
Text Box
APPENDIX I



 
 

 
 
 
Overview 
Alcohol is a major cause of death and illness in Wales with around 1,500 deaths (4.9% of all deaths) attributable 
to alcohol each year. Alcohol misuse contributes to the risk of around 60 diseases. Liver disease is the only 
cause of premature mortality in Wales that is still increasing. CTMUHB has the one of the highest chronic liver 
disease premature mortality rates in Wales.  
 
Evidence reported by Public Health Wales Observatory (2019) highlights Merthyr Tydfil as one of the Local 
Authority areas with the highest rates in alcohol specific* and alcohol-attributable hospital admissions** in 
Wales. Some of the highest rates in alcohol specific and alcohol attributable deaths were also recorded in 
CTMUHB. Both alcohol related hospital admissions and mortality are strongly associated with deprivation. 
 
The Health Board has a statutory responsibility for the health of its population.  We already know that alcohol 
misuse is a major issue within our Health Board area and places a huge burden on many parts of our health 
services and wider community. 
*(Alcohol specific conditions are commonly defined as those conditions, such as alcoholic liver disease, which 
are 100 per cent attributable to alcohol). 
 
**(Alcohol-attributable measures include those conditions which have been evaluated as partially, but not 
completely, caused by alcohol consumption when considered across the whole population). 
 
Protection of children from harm 

 

‘The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children’. (Amended Guidance 

issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, June 2013) 

 

Protecting children from alcohol related harm is crucial to the wellbeing, safety and future health of young 

people in Cwm Taf Morgannwg.  

 

The Health Behaviour of School Aged Children Survey, commissioned by the Welsh Government and conducted 

every four years provides an in-depth understanding of young people’s health and well-being. The most recent 

Health Behaviour of School Aged Children (HBSC) Survey 2017/18 (WG, 2019) reported that: 

 

 50% of boys in Cwm Taf drink more than one drink at one time – the highest percentage across Health 

Boards. 

 

 Cwm Taf Health Board has the highest number of boys (53% ) and girls (58%) who typically have more 

than one drink when they drink alcohol by Local Health Board  

 

 7% of boys and 8% of girls report who have been drunk at least four times in their life. This is amongst 

the highest level across Health Boards. 

 

In addition, evidence from the Public Health Wales Observatory also reported that: 

 

 When compared across the Health Boards in Wales, alcohol specific hospital admissions in children 

under the age of 18 was highest in Cwm Taf (PHW Observatory, 2014). 

 

Comprehensive reviews have clearly highlighted that the consumption of alcohol in children and young 
people is linked with significant harm (Donaldson, 2009). The wide range of these potential harms are 
outlined by the Chief Medical Officer for Wales (Jewell, 2010) and includes: 
 

• A range of developmental problems 
• Increased risk taking behaviour Page 48



 
 

• Inappropriate sexual activity 
• Violence 

 

Evidence demonstrates that young people are more vulnerable than adults to the adverse effects of alcohol 
due to a range of physical and psycho-social factors. 
 
In addition, the number of our children and young people who drink alcohol at a particularly young age and 
through binge drinking in an unsupervised manner is especially concerning, as it puts them at particular risk 
of harm. Some of the potential harms have been highlighted below: 
 
1. There is evidence that young people may suffer high levels of harm if they begin drinking in parks, streets, 
and other unsupervised settings. 
 
2. Young women who binge drink are more likely to have experienced regretted sex as well as forced, or 
attempted forced, sex. Alcohol use before sexual activity can result in condoms being used incorrectly or not 
used at all. 
 
3. In the longer-term young people who binge drink in adolescence: 
 

• are more likely to be binge drinkers as adults 
• have an increased risk of developing alcohol dependence in young    adulthood 
• are more likely to engage in drug use and experience dependence, be involved in crime, and 
achieve lower educational attainment as adults. 
 

4. There is evidence that significant changes in brain structure accompany heavy 
drinking in adolescence, which may affect brain function during adulthood. 
 
5. There is evidence to indicate that children who begin drinking at a young age will drink more frequently 
and in greater quantities than those who delay drinking and therefore, experience greater harm, including: 
 

• vulnerability to alcohol misuse in later adolescence 
• increased health risks, including alcohol-related injuries, involvement in violence and suicidal 
thoughts and attempts (Newbury-Birch, et al., 2009). 
 

This overwhelming evidence has led to the recommendation by the UK Chief Medical Officer that an alcohol-
free childhood is the healthiest and best option for all (Donaldson, 2009). 
 

 

Considering the significant risks highlighted, CTUHB offer our support for a full licence review. 

 

 

 
The prevention of public nuisance  
Alcohol consumption is often seen as a problem that affects individual drinkers rather than other people. 
Research by Public Health Wales and Liverpool John Moore’s University identified that almost 60% of adults in 
Wales had experienced at least ‘one harm’ from someone else’s drinking in the last 12 months when assessed 
against 19 ‘categories of harm’. The types of harms experienced varied with the most common harms including 
feeling anxious at a social occasion; being kept awake due to noise or disruption; having a serious argument; 
being let down; feeling physically threatened, or experience of emotional neglect. Over two fifths (43.7%) of 
adults had experienced at least one more severe harm in the last 12 months (Quigg, Bellis, Grey, et al. 2016). 
 
In light of the evidence, CTMUHB has concerns regarding the potential for public nuisance at Re evolution, 
Bethesda Street.  
 
 
Public Safety 
The two biggest influences on alcohol consumption are price and availability.  Restricting availability is an 
effective way of reducing alcohol related harm (NICE, 2010).  Page 49



 
 

Research undertaken in Wales, reported that higher levels of alcohol availability were found to be associated 
with a 20-25% increased risk of emergency hospital admissions and a consequential increased burden to the 
NHS. Patterns of harm were not the same across Wales, as more deprived local authority areas have higher 
levels of poorer health caused by alcohol and more violent crime (Fone et al. 2016). 
 
 
Recommendations 

Conscientious adherence to the four Licensing Objectives by Licensees is crucial if Cwm Taf Morgannwg is to 

collectively address alcohol related harm in our towns and communities. 

In addition to the recommendations made by other Responsible Authorities, CTMUHB would suggest that:  
 

 The provision of a licence is reconsidered.  

 
 
References 
 
Donaldson, L., (2009). Guidance on the Consumption of alcohol by children and young people, London: 
Department of Health. 
 
Fone, D. et al (2016). Change in alcohol outlet density and alcohol-related harm to population health 
(CHALICE): a comprehensive record-linked database study in Wales. Public Health Research Volume: 4 Issue: 
3 http://www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/phr/volume-4/issue-3#plain-english-summary 
 
Jewell, T., (2010). You, your child and alcohol: Guidance on the consumption of alcohol by children and young 
people, Cardiff: Welsh Government. 
 
National Institute of Health and Care Excellence (2010: PH24). Alcohol-use disorders: prevention. Accessed 
from: https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph24 
 
Newbury-Birch, D. et al., (2009). The impact of alcohol consumption on young people: A Systematic review of 
published reviews, Newcastle: Department for Children, Schools and Families. 
 
Public Health Wales Observatory (2019). Alcohol in Wales. [Online]  
Available at: https://publichealthwales.shinyapps.io/AlcoholinWales/ 
[Accessed 02 07 2019] 
 
Quigg Z, Bellis M., Greya H.,  Ashtonb, K., Hughes. K.,& Webster, J (2016). Alcohol’s harms to others: the 
harms from other people’s alcohol consumption in Wales. Accessed from: 
http://howis.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/888/PHW%20Harms%20to%20Others%20Report%20%28fin
al%29.pdf 
 
Welsh Government, (2019). Health Behaviour of School Aged Children. Accessed from: 
http://www.shrn.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/SHRN-HBSC-NR_31.05.2019.pdf 
 
 
 
 

Page 50

http://www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/phr/volume-4/issue-3#plain-english-summary
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph24
http://howis.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/888/PHW%20Harms%20to%20Others%20Report%20%28final%29.pdf
http://howis.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/documents/888/PHW%20Harms%20to%20Others%20Report%20%28final%29.pdf
http://www.shrn.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/SHRN-HBSC-NR_31.05.2019.pdf


RE-EVOLUTION REPRESENTATIONS 

 

Further to the review application submitted by South Wales Police in relation to Re-Evolution, I 

would like to make the following representations in support of the review application on behalf of 

the Licensing Department as a Responsible Authority. 

The current premises licence has been in place since May 2018.  The premises has changed hands a 

number of times since then.  The most recent change was in December 2019 when it was taken over 

by Mr William Morgan and his company Re-Evolution Ltd.  Mr Morgan chose to open the premises 

as a “Sports Bar and Nightclub”. 

The first contact the Licensing Department had with Mr Morgan was on 10th December 2019 when 

he met with the Licensing Team Leader and SWP Licensing Officer.  Also present was the person who 

was to be dj’ing at the premises.  Advice was given to Mr Morgan as to the sensitive location of the 

premises and previous issues that local residents have encountered as a result of the premises.  The 

officers went through the premises licence in detail, covering the hours permitted for each 

licensable activity and every one of the 27 conditions listed in Annexes 2 & 3.  It was explained to Mr 

Morgan that the outside area could not be used as a beer garden as no alcohol was permitted in that 

area.  Officers advised Mr Morgan to ensure that all conditions were being met prior to the re-

opening of the premises.  Mr Morgan was encouraged to be mindful of the local residents.  Mr 

Morgan indicated that he would be employing a bar manager so the Licensing Department offered 

to meet with her also to ensure that she fully understood the licence.  This meeting took place on 

16th December 2019.  Mr Morgan was also present during the meeting.  The contents of the licence 

were covered in detail, including the permitted hours and all conditions attached to the licence.  Mr 

Morgan was made aware that the Licensing Department had received a number of queries from 

local residents over the re-opening of the business as a “nightclub” and their concerns over this. 

A transfer application was submitted on 17th December 2019 to transfer the premises licence to Re-

Evolution Ltd.  Mr Morgan did not hold a personal licence at that time so the existing DPS, Narinder 

Singh, provided written confirmation that he was retaining the role of DPS. 

The opening night for Re-Evolution was Friday 20th December 2019.  The Licensing Department 

received a number of complaints over that weekend in relation to excessive noise and operating 

beyond the permitted hours.  The Licensing Department and SWP Licensing Officer attended the 

premises on 23rd December 2019 to discuss the complaints.  Mr Morgan confirmed that music had 

been played after the permitted hour of 11.30pm.  His explanation was that there was confusion 

between himself and the dj (despite both being present when the timings were explained 

previously).  Mr Morgan also confirmed that there had been a person under the age of 16 present at 

the premises after 11pm, which was a breach of the licence conditions.  Whilst Mr Morgan was able 

to show CCTV footage to the Officers, he was unable to download any footage.  This was a breach of 

the licence condition which states that downloaded footage must be provided at the time of 

request.  The Licensing Department therefore issued a Section 19 Closure Notice on the premises.  

This prevented licensable activities taking place at the premises until the CCTV breach had been 

rectified. 

The Licensing Team Leader attended the premises on the afternoon of 24th December 2019.  A new 

CCTV hard drive had been installed from which footage could be downloaded.  Therefore the 

Closure Notice was lifted. 

Page 51

hughea1_23
Text Box
APPENDIX J



A final warning letter was sent by the Licensing Department on 27th December 2019 in relation to 

the breaches identified between 20th and 23rd December. 

Over the Christmas and New Year period, the Licensing Department received a number of 

complaints in relation to excessive noise and operating beyond the permitted hours.  However, the 

Licensing Officer viewed CCTV footage and all complaints were deemed to be unfounded. 

On 20th January 2020, SWP made the Licensing Department aware of two reports that they had 

received in relation to the premises, namely: 

 Under 18s from Garth Newydd Court attending the premises, with the claim that a male 17 

year old was working premises but being paid in “shots”; 

 A 15 year old male involved in a domestic incident had been drinking at the premises. 

The father of the 15 year old male contacted the Licensing Department on 20th January.  He 

explained that his son had been out with a group of friends who were all 15/16 years old on 18th 

January.  He had located his son at Re-Evolution so he attended the premises to bring him home.  His 

group of friends were also there so the father advised the door staff on duty that they were all 

underage.  He alleges that the door staff said that it was nothing to do with them and allowed the 

youths to remain in the premises. 

On 21st January 2020, the Licensing Team Leader and SWP Licensing Officer attended the premises 

to discuss the reports with Mr Morgan.  CCTV footage was viewed of the night of 18th January.  Mr 

Morgan and one other member of staff were working behind the bar and there were door staff on 

duty.  Footage showed a group of youngsters in the bottom room who appeared to be around 15/16 

years old.  One of the individuals was identified by Officers as the 15 year old male mentioned 

above.  There was a young female in this area who appeared to be heavily intoxicated and it was 

noted that two of the other young females appeared intoxicated as they fell over a number of times.  

The 30 minutes of footage which was viewed did not show any monitoring of the area by bar staff, 

however there were door staff present around this area. 

When challenged over the footage, Mr Morgan advised that he had relied on door staff to carry out 

the age verification checks and no checks were made at the bar.  He was advised that the wording of 

the condition on the premises licence was that “any persons appearing under the age of 25 will be 

subject to challenge in respect of alcohol”.  This means that bar staff are responsible for carrying out 

identification checks also. 

The SWP Licensing Officer discussed the issues regarding underage residents of Garth Newydd Court 

with Mr Morgan and appropriate advice was given. 

On 22nd January 2020, a report was made to the Council by a neighbour of the premises regarding a 

rise in anti-social behaviour since the re-opening of Re-Evolution.  The report alleges that drunken 

teenagers stand around outside their front garden, on one occasion causing damage to the wall, and 

on another occasion vomiting into the garden.  There were also concerns raised regarding drunk 

people leaving or being refused entry causing a nuisance in the street outside their home.  The 

issues in this report were raised with Mr Morgan and he advised that he would task his door staff to 

monitor this area and deal with any issues. 

Due to the underage issues which had been identified, the Licensing Department contacted the 

named DPS, Narinder Singh, to make him aware as he was responsible for all alcohol sales.  Mr Singh 

attended the Civic Centre on 23rd January 2020 and after hearing details of the underage issues, he 

removed himself as DPS with immediate effect.  Mr Morgan was made aware of this and later that 

Page 52



day, an application was submitted to name Rebecca Dando as DPS.  Rebecca Dando was the bar 

manager who Licensing Officers met with prior to the premises opening in December 2019 so she 

was aware of the permitted hours and conditions on the premises licence. 

Following reports of underage persons being present in the premises on 25th January 2020, CCTV 

footage was requested.  The footage did not identify anyone who was obviously under the age of 18.  

It did however show that drinks were being taken out into the outdoor area to the side of the 

premises continually throughout the 3 hour period.  This is a further breach of the conditions 

attached to the current premises licence. 

Footage was also requested on behalf of SWP for the night of 18th January 2020.  This had been 

viewed at the premises by Officers but not downloaded at the time of viewing.  Mr Morgan was 

unable to provide this downloaded footage as he had changed his CCTV system and gotten rid of the 

previous hard drive.  This is a breach of the CCTV condition which states that images must be 

retained for 31 days. 

CCTV footage was requested for 8th February 2020.  There was a 6 Nations Rugby match on this date.  

The CCTV footage showed that despite the condition mandating that all drinks be dispensed into 

non-glass plastic receptacles, this was not happening during the afternoon.  Footage also identified a 

group of 3 males and 1 female who clearly appear to be under the age of 25 but were not challenged 

for identification at the bar when purchasing alcohol.  This is a breach of the Challenge 25 condition 

on the licence.  The footage also identified persons taking alcohol into the outdoor area to the side 

of the premises which is again a breach of the premises licence. 

On 10th February 2020, Rebecca Dando attended the Civic Centre to remove herself as DPS with 

immediate effect.  Mr Morgan was made aware and advised that until an application to name a new 

DPS was submitted, the sale of alcohol could not take place from the premises.  The premises 

remained closed for the rest of the week, until a last minute application was submitted on the 

afternoon of Friday 14th February to name Wayne Gutierrez as DPS and allow the premises to open 

on the weekend.  Mr Gutierrez is the owner of the door staff company that Mr Morgan uses.  Within 

an 8 week period, there have been 3 different DPS’s named on the premises licence and this 

undermines confidence in the control of the premises. 

Mr Morgan passed a personal licence qualification on 11th December 2019.  Therefore, at the time of 

opening the business, his knowledge and awareness of Licensing legislation and the licensing 

objectives should have been at the forefront of his mind.  However over the 7 week period between 

20th December 2019 and 8th February 2020, 10 breaches of varying natures have been identified.  

This is despite intensive intervention from Licensing Officers even before the premises re-opened as 

Re-Evolution.  The manner in which the premises has been run over this period is of concern to the 

Licensing Department and there is a lack of confidence in the management of Mr Morgan over the 

business.  It is not acceptable that within a 7 week period so many breaches have occurred and 3 out 

of the 4 licensing objectives have been undermined. 

 

JOANNE BABER 

LICENSING TEAM LEADER 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Hayley Cullen <HayleyCullen@llamau.org.uk>
Sent: 27 February 2020 16:09
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Subject: FW: Re-Evolution

Importance: High

 
 

Hayley  Cullen
 

Project Manager, Cwm Taf Support Services 
  

  

01685 379999
 

  
  

  

07966 981082
 

 
  

  

www.llamau.org.uk
 

 

Llamau | Flat 4 
Garth Newydd Court
Bethesda Street 

|  
 

Merthyr Tydfil |  
 

CF47 8PY

 

  

  

  

  

 

  

Registered company no 2396224 I Registered charity no 701772  
Registered office 23 Cathedral Road, Cardiff CF11 9HA  

The information contained in this email and any attachment is confidential. It is intended only for the named addressee(s). Any opinions 
expressed in this message and any attachments are those of the author and are not necessarily those of Llamau.  Llamau accepts no 
responsibility for loss or damage arising from its use, including damage from virus. 
 

 

 

From: Hayley Cullen  
Sent: 27 February 2020 13:54 
To: aneurin.bevan@merthyr.gov.uk 
Subject: Re-Evolution 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Aneurin, 
 
I am the project manager for Garth Newydd Court, which is a supported housing project in 
Merthyr. We support 7 of some of Merthyrs most vulnerable and disadvantaged young 
people. The young people we support have either been looked after by the local authority or 
have found themselves homeless. We provide 24/7 support to these young people to develop 
independent living skills to ensure a successful transition into the community. We have 
supported hundreds of young people over the years to become contributing members of 
society and supported them to be become the best versions of themselves. 
 
Since ‘RE-Evolution’ has opened we have noted a change in behaviour of some the young 
people we support. Our young people have displayed incredibly risky behaviour as there age 
has not been challenged. As a direct result of being able to consume alcohol at this venue, 
they have been making poor decisions and have put their tenancy at risk. There have been 
occasions were people who have been at the venue with our young people have come on to 

Page 59

hughea1_24
Text Box
APPENDIX M



2

our project late at night, putting themselves, staff, other service users and our neighbours at 
risk. This behaviour had not been displayed in recent years, until ‘Re-Evolution’ opened. 
 
Due to unauthorised guests visiting project from ‘Re-Evolution’ we have had several 
neighbour complaints due to noise. There have been occasions were young people, who are 
not residents at Garth Newydd Court, have congregated outside the project causing noise 
disturbances and they have been mistaken for young people who are residents with us. I 
cannot stress to you enough the importance of us keeping positive relationships with our 
neighbours. Without the support of our incredibly understanding neighbours, the invaluable 
support that we provide could be put at risk. If we were unable to provide this support, 
young people in Merthyr would miss out on these opportunities.  
 
Staff have noticed that the young people they have witnessed outside and entering ‘Re-
Evolution’ do not look u18 and not one of the young people we support who have been at 
‘Re-Evolution’ are 18 either. This is incredibly concerning. 
 
We have had suspicions that one of our young people may be at risk of exploitation at the 
venue. The young person stated at the time that they were ‘Dj’ing’ for free and would collect 
glasses in ‘exchange for shots’. Whilst this isn’t a current risk, I do believe that this has only 
been rectified due to the scrutiny that ‘Re-Evolution’ is under. I am doubtful this would’ve 
changed had the licence holders be under review. 
 
I hope you consider the impact that ‘Re-Evolution’ has had on the young people of Merthyr 
during your review. If you would like any more information, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 
 
Thanks 

Page 60



1

Hughes, Aneurin

From: Jones, Clive (Councillor)
Sent: 27 February 2020 23:16
To: Hughes, Aneurin
Cc: Baber, Joanne; Simon Jones
Subject: Review of the Re-evolution  License, Bethesda Street

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

I wish to make representations in the review meeting in March in relation to the licence of the above. club. 
The property is surrounded by residential properties and I have received complaints that music has been 
played beyond the permitted hours. I also understand that that the management of this club have undermined 
the licensing objectives in  very short space of time since the licence was granted.I have also spoken  to the 
local PCSO  about issues that have been brought to my attention about the way this club has been run. 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

Page 61

hughea1_25
Text Box
APPENDIX N



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                 
 
        31st January 2020 
 
 
FAO – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Licencing Committee    
      
I am the School Community Police Officer for Merthyr Tydfil Schools.  As part of my role 
delievering the All Wales School Liaison Core Programme I also deal with incidents and 
safeguarding concerns within the school environment and the wider community.  Whilst 
attending one of the Comprehensive Schools within Merthyr last week I was informed by the 
Deputy Head Teacher on Tuesday 21st January 2020 that some parents of pupils that attend 
the school, aged approximately 15/16 years of age had received information over the 
weekend of 17th18th January 2020 that their own children were present at the Re-Evolution 
Club, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil drinking alcohol.   As a result of this information, the 
parents themselves attended at the club and removed their children from there.  One of these 
young people was subsequently taken to Prince Charles Hospital by their parents for 
alcohol/possible substance misuse.   
 
 

 

               Kind regards / Cofion cynnes  

PC 1715 Angela Rogers 

Cwnstabl / Constable   

 
Rhaglen Graidd Cyswllt Ysgolion Cymru Gyfan  All Wales School Liaison Core Programme 

 

 
Gorsaf Hedllue Dowlais  | Dowlais Police Station  

 

Tel:  07469 907795 

 

  

                                                      
 

 

Heddlu'n diogelu plant Cymru trwy addysg atal troseddu  

 
Police safeguarding the children of Wales through crime prevention 

education 

 
 

Page 63

https://www.south-wales.police.uk/
http://fb.me/swpolice
https://www.instagram.com/swpolice/
https://twitter.com/swpolice
https://www.youtube.com/user/swptv
hughea1_26
Text Box
APPENDIX O



  

 

 

  

 

 

 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



HISTORY OF PREMISES 

PUNJABI JUNCTION/TIFFINS/RE-EVOLUTION 

 

13.6.2018 Licence granted to Mr Kamaljit Singh following Committee Hearing.  Mr 

Singh also DPS.  Committee added 21 conditions to licence. 

16.7.2018 DPS Variation to Jasvir Singh Dillon 

9.11.2018 Licence Transferred to Narinder Singh 

9.11.2018 DPS Variation to Narinder Singh 

6.12.2018 Warning Letter to Narinder Singh 

7.5.2019 Final Warning Letter to Narinder Singh 

2.8.2019 Letter sent advising to submit Minor Variation or SWP will request 

Review of licence. 

14.8.2019 Minor Variation granted to add 5 additional conditions. 

17.12.2019 Premises Licence transferred to Re-Evolution Ltd.  Premises name 

changed.  No change in DPS – remains as Narinder Singh. 

23.12.2019 S19 Closure Notice issued under Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 

for breaches of licensing conditions. 

24.12.2019 S19 Closure Notice issued under Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 

lifted. 

27.12.2019 Final Warning letter issued to Re-Evolution Ltd for operating beyond 

licensed hours and breaches of conditions. 

23.1.2020 Narinder Singh removes himself as DPS following under age sales at 

the premises. 

23.1.2020 DPS Variation to Rebecca Dando. 

30.1.2020 South Wales Police submit Review application. 

10.2.2020 Rebecca Dando removes herself as DPS with immediate effect. 

13.2.2020 William Morgan - Personal Licence Issued. 

13.2.2020 SWP advise William that they would object if he applies to become 

DPS. 

14.2.2020 DPS Variation to Wayne Gutierrez (PA0074) with immediate effect 

27.2.2020 Statutory 28-day consultation period for Review Application finished at 

Midnight. 

 

Page 65

hughea1_27
Text Box
APPENDIX P



In under 2 years (21 months) the premises has had 3 different Premises Licence 

Holders; 5 different DPS’ (the current DPS is only a temporary one) and 14 known 

complaints.   

Since opening as Re-Evolution it has had 3 DPS’ and by the time of the Hearing will 

be due their 4th.  For a premises to have 4 DPS’ in just over 3 months does not 

promote any of the Licensing objectives and can be perceived to indicate poor 

management as a direct reflection of poor company practice or policy at the 

premises. 

Page 66



RE-EVOLUTION 

10.12.2019 William Morgan met with Licensing Team Leader & South Wales 

Police Licensing Officer.  His DJ was also present and the licence, 

activities, hours and conditions were gone through in details with 

both of them. 

16.12.2019 Licensing Team Leader & South Wales Police Licensing Officer 

met with William and his Bar Manager and went through the details 

of the licence and its conditions in detail with both. 

17.12.2019 Licence transferred to Re-Evolution Ltd.  Company incorporated 

10.12.2019 with 1 Director – Mr William John Morgan. 

20.12.2019 Opening Night – Complaints received regarding operating beyond 

licensed hours. 

23.12.2019 CCTV footage proved above complaints to be true.  William 

Morgan also confirmed further breaches.  He could not supply 

copies of CCTV – Breach of condition.  S19 Closure Notice issued 

under Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001. 

24.12.2019 New CCTV hard drive installed – S19 Closure Notice lifted. 

26.12.2019 - 1.1.2020 Numerous Noise Complaints received – Unfounded. 

27.12.2019 Final Warning Letter issued detailing unlicensed activity & breach 

of conditions.  Also stated that should further complaints or 

breaches occur then a Review would be more than justified. 

20.1.2020 Reports of underage sales at the premises and a youth being 

collected from the premises inebriated which led to a domestic 

incident and a subsequent arrest. 

21.1.2020 Licensing Team Leader & South Wales Police Licensing Officer 

attended the premises to view CCTV of the weekend of 17 – 19 

January. 

22.1.2020 Report received by the Council of a rise in anti-social behaviour 

since Re-Evolution opened.  Mr Morgan informed of this and he 

advised he would get his door supervisors to monitor the area 

concerned. 

23.1.2020 Narinder Singh removes himself as DPS of the premises 

23.1.2020 DPS Variation to Rebecca Dando 

25.1.2020 Report received of underage persons in the premises.  CCTV 

viewed at the premises and copies of it were requested.  

Subsequent viewing of the footage did not identify any persons who 

were clearly underage but did show drinks being taken outside 

which is an unlicensed activity (offence under S136). 

Page 67



30.1.2020 Review application submitted by South Wales Police 

30.1.2020 Env Health submitted reps supporting the Review application.  

They currently has five Noise Complaints regarding the premises. 

3.2.2020 Trading Standards submit email supporting Review application on 

grounds of Protection of Children from Harm. 

5.2.2020 William Morgan submits email with regards the issue of the 15yr old 

boy in his premises who was hospitalised later. 

10.2.2020 South Wales Police submit representation statement from School 

Community Police Officer addressed to the Licensing Committee.  

Accepted as a valid representation. 

10.2.2020 Email received from South Wales Police that contained a copy of 

an email from William Morgan to their Licensing Officer, Andy 

Jenkins.  In this email, he confirms that the CCTV Hard Drive has 

been disposed of.  Therefore, another breach of condition.  As we 

were notified 5 days later unable to issue another S19 Closure 

Notice. 

10.2.2020 South Wales Police submit photos received from William Morgan 

regards notices displayed at the premises. 

10.2.2020 Rebecca Dando removes herself as the DPS for the premises with 

immediate effect.  Email sent to William Morgan advising him: - no 

alcohol sales, if he does then offence and penalty.  This remains in 

force until new DPS nominated with correct forms & payment etc. 

13.2.2020 William Morgan granted a Personal Licence and enquires about 

becoming the DPS for Re-Evolution.  South Wales Police advise 

him that if he submits the relevant forms then they will have no 

alternative but to object to it on the same grounds as the Review 

has been submitted. 

14.2.2020 DPS Variation to Wayne Gutierrez (PA0074) who runs the Door 

Supervisors at the premises.  Copy of the licence given to Wayne 

as he was unaware what conditions he needed to comply with. 

17.2.2020 Public Health representations received supporting the Review and 

the request to revoke the licence. 

25.2.2020 CCTV requested and viewed for 8.2.2020 as this was 6 Nations 

day.  Further breaches of conditions identified – Conditions 21 & 10 

of Annex 3; Drinks taken outside = unlicensed activity (offence 

under S136). 

 

 

Page 68



26.2.2020 Representations supporting the Review application received from 2 

members of the public.  One of these was deemed relevant and 

has been accepted.  The second was deemed as irrelevant and not 

accepted as a valid representation.  Notifications have been sent to 

both parties. 

27.2.2020 SWP submitted no objections to Wayne Gutierrez being named as 

the DPS for the premises but only on the proviso that he is there on 

a short-term basis – 4 to 6 weeks. 

27.2.2020 Email sent to Re-Evolution Ltd c/o William Morgan re breaches of 

conditions identified on CCTV footage.  Advice given that these 

breaches will form part of the Licensing Authority’s representations 

and will be considered by Committee. 

27.2.2020 Representations supporting Review applications received from 

Area Child Protection; Licensing Authority; Resident; Ward 

Member; Llamau Ltd – all deemed relevant and accepted.  

Notifications sent to all. 

28.2.2020 Statutory 28-day consultation period has now closed – no further 

reps will be accepted. 

2.3.2020 Copies of all representations received emailed to William Morgan 

and advised that the consultation period has now finished and he 

can take his blue notices down.  Also advised Hearing will take 

place on 26.3.2020. 

Page 69



In 6 weeks of operating the premises prior to the submission of the Review 

Application the Licensing Department had received 9 complaints (6 were unfounded) 

and issued a S19 Closure Notice.   

 

South Wales Police have received the following recent reports: - 

16.1.2020  17 year old person working at the premises was paid in ‘shots’ 

18.1.2020 15 year old heavily intoxicated collected from the premises by 

his parents which resulted in a domestic incident and complaint 

to South Wales Police and Licensing Department. 

22.1.2020 Reports of 15/16 year olds in the premises on 18.1.2020. 

Reported to SWP by the Schools Police Liaison Officer.  Parents 

attended the premises to collect their children.  One of them had 

to be taken to Prince Charles Hospital due to concerns about 

alcohol/substance misuse. 

 

Environmental Health have received the following recent reports regarding noise 

nuisance: - 

08/01/2020 Complaint regarding music noise from 7 Garth Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - 

Noise log sheets have been sent to the complainant and awaiting their 

return. 

09/01/2020  Complaint regarding music noise from 6 Garth Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - 

Noise log sheets have been sent to the complainant and awaiting their 

return.   

09/01/2020  Complaint regarding music noise from 9 Garth Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - 

Noise log sheets have been sent to the complainant and awaiting their 

return.   

25/01/2020  Complaint regarding music noise from an anonymous source: -  

Unable to contact the complainant for any further details. 

28/01/2020 Complaint regarding music noise and ASB from patrons associated 

with the premises from 22 Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil: - Noise log 

sheets have been sent to the complainant and awaiting their return.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



The Licensee has breached the conditions attached to his licence on the following 

dates (before and after the submission of the Review application): -  

20.12.2019 – Operated outside his licensed hours (unlicensed activity S136 offence); 

person under the age of 16 in the premises after 2300hrs (Annex 3 Condition 17). 

23.12.2019 – Couldn’t provide a copy of his CCTV on request (Annex 3 Condition 3) 

18.1.2020 – Underage viewed on CCTV – none were challenged for ID (Annex 3 

Conditions 9, 10 & 11) 

25.1.2020 – CCTV viewed at premises – drinks being taken outside in the side area 

(unlicensed activity – No Off-Sales at the premises – S136 offence) 

25.1.2020 – copies of CCTV requested – not provided (Annex 3 Condition 3) 

10.2.2020 – further to request of CCTV on 25.1.2020 email received confirmed it had 

been disposed of (Annex 3 Condition 2) 

8.2.2020 – CCTV viewed on 25.2.2020 - real glass being used not plastic (Annex 3 

Condition 21); Under 25’s not challenged (Annex 3 Conditions 9, 10 &11); drinks 

being taken outside in the side area (unlicensed activity – No Off-Sales at the 

premises – S136 offence) 

 

This shows 7 sets of breaches, some of which are multiple breaches.  These are the 

only dates that have been looked at, however, it is anticipated that should CCTV be 

requested for other dates further breaches of conditions would be identified. 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Application to Review a Premises Licence - Re-Evolution, Bethesda Street, Merthyr Tydfil
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Appendix I2
	Appendix 13
	Appendix 14
	Appendix 15
	Appendix 16
	Appendix 17
	Appendix 18
	Appendix 19




